
WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING COMMISSION 

Monday, February 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, February 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the 1st Floor Board of 
Supervisor’s Meeting Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. 
entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. 
Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting and public hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call:  
(712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 516 721 135# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended 
to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER

2 ROLL CALL

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 28, 2022

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS

» ELECTION OF CHAIR OF ZONING COMMISSION FOR 2023

» ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR OF ZONING COMMISSION FOR 2023

» PUBLIC HEARING: BARKER ADDITION, MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL ON PARCEL #874704300003
Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys Family Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust have filed for a six (6) lot minor subdivision to be known as 
Barker Addition on the property identified as Parcel #874704300003 in the SW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 4, T87N R47W (Liberty Township).  This 
subdivision proposal is being presented concurrently with a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the 
Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.   

» PUBLIC HEARING: ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) 
TO THE AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT – PORTION OF PARCEL #874704300003 
Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys Family Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust has filed an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment 
(rezone).  The proposal is to rezone from AP to the AE Zoning District for 13.26-acres located on Parcel #874704300003 in the SW ¼ of the SW ¼ of 
Section 4, T87N R47W (Liberty Township) for the purpose of establishing six residential lots through a concurrent minor subdivision application.   

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 UPDATE

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: THE NEW WOODBURYCOUNTYIOWA.GOV WEBSITE

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

7 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY

8 STAFF UPDATE

9 ADJOURN

1



 

1 

 

Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission – November 28, 2022 
 
The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting convened on the 28th of November at 6:00 PM in the basement of the 
Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting location in the Courthouse was moved from the first-floor boardroom 
to the basement due to limited seating in the first-floor boardroom.  The meeting was also made available via 
teleconference.   
 
ZC Members Present:    Christine Zellmer Zant, Tom Bride, Barb Parker, Jeff O’Tool, Corey 

Meister 
County Staff Present:  Dan Priestley 
Public Present: Carole Hennings, Deb Main, Axel Johnston, Britany Heath, Karen 

Keath, Vicki Hulse, Jana Martens, Diane Weaver, Sandi Brouwer, 
Stee Maxwell, Gayle Palmquist, Doyle Turner, Jim Colyer, Renee 
Colyer, Barb Petersen, Loren Peterson, Luke Grigg, Christine 
Gant, Kyle Karrer, Ron Karrer, Dennis Karrer, JoAnn Sadler, Brian 
Sadler, Dan Bittinger, Alan McGaffin, Terri McGaffin, Jody Wilson, 
Todd Grohs, Curt Grigg 

 
Call to Order 
Chair Christine Zellmer Zant formally called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM CST. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None.   
 
Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2022 Meeting 
Motion by Meister second by Parker to approve the minutes of the October 24, 2022 meeting.  Carried 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Zahnley First Addition, Minor Subdivision Proposal 
Priestley read the staff report summary into the record.  Phirman E. Zahnley has filed for a one-lot minor 
subdivision including Parcel #894227200001 as referenced above.  The purpose is to spilt the house from the farm 
ground.  This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on November 12, 2022.  
The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a November 9, 2022 letter about the November 28, 2022 
Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and 
organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the 
proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot has adequate access to the 
road system.  Extraterritorial review, as required by Iowa Code 354.9, was completed by the City of Correctionville 
on October 10, 2022.  The property is not located in the floodplain.  The proposed lot contains both the well and 
septic system.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve 
this proposal as proposed.  Surveyor Axel Johnston was present on behalf of the applicant and reported that the 
structure to the north of the property was 22.5 FT from the north property line.  Motion by O’Tool second by Bride to 
close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0.  Motion by O’Tool second by Meister to recommend approval of the Zahnley 
First Addition to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors as proposed.  Carried 5-0.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Hazardous Liquid Pipelines 
Priestley read the staff report summary into the record.  On October 11, 2022, the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors unanimously approved a motion to direct staff and the Zoning Commission to initiate a review process 
and provide a recommendation of a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to address the 
permitting of Hazardous Liquid Pipelines.  There is already a process in place to address the permitting of pipelines, 
however, the intent is to review the current process and consider supplemental language to the ordinance that would 
account for specific separation distances from occupied structures due to concerns about the health and safety of 
residents being located in close proximity to pipelines.  Priestley referenced a report prepared by staff including a 
review of literature that considers a series of studies as it relates to the consequences of pipeline failures including 
the impact to the population as well as measures local communities can employ for mitigation.  The report describes 
the county’s existing conditional use permit procedure and makes the recommendation to institute a setback of 330 
FT as rooted in the Emergency Response Guidebook (2022) from residential structures or dwellings.  The 
recommendation also includes a 50 FT setback in commercial and industrial zoning districts.  It is also recommended 
to institute 1000 FT planning areas and consultation zones to foster collaboration among landowners, pipeline 
operators, government officials, and other stakeholders.  Priestley stated other counties in Iowa such as Shelby 
County and Story County have passed ordinances for the regulation of hazardous liquid pipelines including the 
establishment of separation distances.  On Monday, November 14, 2022, a federal court case was filed in the United 
States District Court for the Southern District of Iowa Central Division between William Couser and Summit Carbon 
Solutions, LLC (Plaintiffs) v. Story County, Iowa: Story County Board of Supervisors…The case considers questions 
of whether the local ordinance No. 306 is preempted by federal and state measures.   
 
 
 

2



 

 

 

2 

Carole Hennings, 1970 Garner Avenue, Moville, IA; Deborah Main, 1026 Charles Avenue, Sioux City, IA; Alan 
McGaffin 1122 S. Paxton, St., Sioux City, IA; Gayle Palmquist, 1848 130th St., Lawton, IA; Jana Martens, 2678 110th 
St., Moville, IA; Karen Heath, 4809 Oxford Drive, Sioux City, IA; Jim Collyer, 1650 Old Hwy 141, Sergeant Bluff, IA; 
Viki Hulse, 2700 100th Street, Moville, IA;  Stee Maxwell, 248 Pearl St. S, Moville, IA; Doyle Turner, 2738 200th St., 
Moville, IA; Dan Bittinger, 2901 Sunset Circle, Sioux City, IA; Jody Wilson, 1449 Charles, Avenue, Lawton, IA; Todd 
Grohs, 1661 180th St., Sioux City, IA; Curt Grigg, 1261 Delaware Ave., Lawton, IA addressed the board with concerns 
regarding the placement of hazardous liquid pipelines and the ordinance proposal. 
 
Motion by Bride second by Meister to receive documents from Deborah Main.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.  
 3932_001.pdf

 
Motion by Meister second by O’Tool to receive documents from Gayle Palmquist.  Carried 5-0. Copy 
filed. 
 

3931_001.pdf

 

Motion by Parker second by Bride to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
In consideration of the proposed draft zoning ordinance text amendment, members of the Commission discussed the 
proposal including the proposed setbacks while taking questions and clarifying information for the public during the 
executive session.  The consequences of the proposed setbacks were referenced including the potential 
establishment of reverse setbacks thereby establishing a class of legal nonconforming structures along pipeline 
corridors.  The conditional use permit process currently on the books, including the criteria used by the Zoning 
Commission and Board of Adjustment to make a determination were discussed and shared including the ability to 
institute conditions as part of the permit application approval.  The current criteria was referenced as reviewing 
applications based on the situation and relevant circumstances as they relate to the ordinance criteria.  The options 
for moving forward with a recommendation were discussed. 
 
Motion by Bride second by Parker to stay with the existing process with the Conditional Use Permit instead of going 
with the draft amendment ordinance proposal.  Carried 5-0. 
 
Meister stated he would like more time to review the case.  Priestley responded that the motion passed is sticking 
with the current process but some questions rooted in the criteria could be formulated to assist with the Conditional 
Use process.    
 
Bride indicated that he remains open to further guidance from the Board of Supervisors including any 
language/questions to assist the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment in analyzing the Conditional Use 
Permit criteria in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Priestley indicated that the Board of Supervisors, even with the rejection of this draft ordinance amendment by the 
Zoning Commission, have the ability to consider this ordinance language or adjustments to it.  The Board also has 
the ability to direct the Zoning Commission to look into the issue further.   
 
Priestley stated that this will be brought up as an information item at tomorrow night’s Board of Supervisors meeting 
(11/29/22). 
 
Information / Discussion: Application process for positions on the Board of Adjustment and Zoning Commission 
Priestley discussed the application process for membership on the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment.  
Applications are due in the Board of Supervisors office before December 15, 2022.  The Board of Supervisors make 
appointments to both boards. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 
 
Commissioner Comment of Inquiry  
None 
 
Staff Update 
The Zoning Commission recommendation on a hazardous liquid pipelines zoning ordinance amendment will be 
brought to the Board of Supervisors as an information item tomorrow, Tuesday, November 29 to update the 
Supervisors about tonight’s proceedings.   
 
Adjourn 
Motion by Meister second by O’Tool to adjourn the meeting.  Carried 5-0.  Meeting ended at 8:42 PM CST. 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

 

 

3 

APPENDIX – RECEIVED DOCUMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

4



 

 

 

4 

5



 

 

 

5 

6



 

 

 

6 

7



 

 

 

7 

8



 

 

 

8 

9



 

 

 

9 

10



 

 

 

10 

 

11



 

 

 

11 

12



 

 

 

12 

13



 

 

 

13 

14



 

 

 

14 

 

15



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – FEBRUARY 22, 2023 
MAXYS FAMILY FARM LLC / BRIAN AND BONNIE IVENER TRUST 

BARKER ADDITION - MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL
APPLICATION DETAILS: 

Owner(s): Maxys Family Farm LLC; Ivener Brian & Bonnie Trust 
Application Type: Minor Subdivision (6 Lots) 
Subdivision Name: Barker Addition 
Application Date: 1/31/23 
Subdivision Area: 13.26 Total Acres 
Legal Notice Date: February 11, 2023 
Stakeholder (1000’) Letter Date: February 10, 2023 
Zoning Commission Public Hearing Date: February 27, 2023 
Board of Supervisors Agenda Date: To be determined. 

PROPERTY DETAILS: 
Parcel(s): 874704300003
Township/Range: T87N R47W (Liberty 
Township) 
Section: 4 
Quarter: SW ¼ SW 1/4 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone A – General Floodplain 
Address: None 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 
Summary, Aerial, Plat Excerpt & Recommendation 
Application 
Final Plat 
Review Criteria 
Extra Territorial Review 
Legal Notification 
Adjacent Owners’ Notification 
Stakeholder Comments 
Supporting Documentation 

SUMMARY
Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys Family Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust have filed for a six (6) lot minor subdivision on the 
property identified as Parcel #874704300003 and referenced above.  This subdivision proposal is being presented concurrently with a Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.  Both proposals have 
been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on February 11, 2023.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a 
February 10, 2023 letter about the February 27, 2023 Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, 
utilities, and organizations have been notified and have be requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance 
with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lots have adequate access.  Extraterritorial review, as required by Iowa Code 354.9, was 
waived by the City of Sergeant Bluff with the adoption of Resolution 23-01 on January 10, 2023.  A small portion of the property that is not in any 
buildable area is located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (Zone A – Floodplain).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth 
in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this 
proposal with the condition that the property owner sign pavement agreements for any future paving along Barker Avenue and 230th Street.

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate 
criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this proposal with the condition that the property owner(s) sign pavement 
agreements for any future grading and hard surfacing and pavement along Barker Avenue and 230th Street. 

Suggested Motion:  Motion to recommend the approval of the Barker Addition to the Board of Supervisors with the condition that the property 
owner(s) sign pavement agreement(s) for any future grading and hard surfacing and pavement along Barker Avenue and 230th Street. 

16



APPLICATION

17



MAXYS FAMILY FARM MEMBER RESOLUTION

18



DRAWING NO.

CREW CHIEF

ENGINEER

SHEET NO.

SURVEYOR

DRAWN BY

REVISIONS

making lives better.

/01D
RA

W
IN

G
 P

A
TH

: 
P:

\2
0
2
2
0
0
1
4
4
3
-0

0
0
\0

6
-D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Ba
rk

er
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
.d

w
g

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

: 
0
2
/1

4
/2

0
2
3
 9

:1
5
 A

M
PL

O
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 S

TE
V

E 
K

A
IS

ER

BARKER ADDITION
FINAL PLAT

WOODBURY COUNTY

2022001443

01/01/2023

.

.

.

.

.

---- J. JENSEN

J.JENSEN M. KNIGHT

FP-01 03

617 Pierce Street, Ste 201

Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712-224-4613

fax 515-576-4235

TRS: SECTION 4, T87N, R47W

ALIQUOT PART: SW1/4 SW1/4

CITY: SERGEANT BLUFF

PROPRIETOR: MAXY'S FAMILY FARM LLC

REQUESTED BY: DOLF IVENER

SURVEYOR: JUSTIN JENSEN

COMPANY: MCCLURE

RETURN TO: JUSTIN JENSEN

705 1ST AVENUE NORTH

FORT DODGE, IOWA 50501 / 515-576-7155

COUNTY: WOODBURY

STATE OF IOWA :
: SS

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

DOCKET NO: ____________________________

FILED FOR RECORD, THIS___________DAY OF_________________________, 2023, AT________O'CLOCK _____.M. RECORDED IN

PLAT ENVELOPE______________________________________, INDEXED AND DELIVERED TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR OF

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

DATED  _________________________, 2023

_________________________________________________
PATRICK F. GILL, AUDITOR AND RECORDER, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
BY: DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

I, TINA BERTRAND, TREASURER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE LAND DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED AND FOREGOING SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE IS
FREE FROM CERTIFIED TAXES AND CERTIFIED SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.

DATED  ____________________________________, 2023.

_________________________________________________
TINA BERTRAND, TREASURER WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

THE COUNTY AUDITOR HEREBY ACCEPTS AND APPROVES THE NAME OR TITLE OF THE ATTACHED SUBDIVISION PLAT AS REQUIRED BY IOWA CODE SECTION 354.6(2).

DATED  _____________________________________, 2023.

_________________________________________________
PATRICK F. GILL, AUDITOR AND RECORDER, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
BY: DIANE SWOBODA PETERSON, DEPUTY

I, MARK J. NAHRA, P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER FOR WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE BOUNDARY LINES OF THE PLAT AND LOTS THEREIN WERE
MATHEMATICALLY CHECKED AND CONFORM WITH THE REQUIREMENTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THAT ALL DIMENSIONS BOTH LINEAR AND
ANGULAR NECESSARY FOR THE LOCATION OF LOTS, TRACTS, STREETS, AND EASEMENTS, ARE SHOWN.

DATED  _____________________________________, 2023.

__________________________________________________
MARK NAHRA, P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER FOR WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

WE HAVE THIS DATE EXAMINED A COMPLETE ABSTRACT TO TITLE, PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE SECTION 354.11(1)(C) TO PROPERTY WHICH INCLUDES IN ITS

ENTIRETY, PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THE SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE ON THE PLAT OF: BARKER ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA LAST CERTIFIED BY

ENGLESON ABSTRACT CO., INC., DATED                                                                                            ______________________, 2023 AT 8:59 A.M. AND FROM SAID ABSTRACT

FIND GOOD AND MERCHANTABLE TITLE TO SAID PREMISES VESTED IN MAXYS FAMILY FARM, LLC, AN IOWA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AND BRIAN AND BONNIE

IVENER TRUST UTD JULY 6, 2006 SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING, LIENS, LIMITATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS:

1. ALL CERTIFIED REAL ESTATE TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS DUE AND PAYABLE HAVE BEEN PAID.  REAL ESTATE TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

NOT CERTIFIED ARE A LIEN IN AN UNDETERMINED AMOUNT.

DATED: _______________, 2023.

______________________

RYAN C. ROSS

ATTORNEY AT LAW

I, CHRIS ZELLMER ZANT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA AND DO

FURTHER CERTIFY THAT SAID COMMISSION HAS HERETOFORE TAKEN UNDER ADVISEMENT THE PLAT OF BARKER ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, AND THAT

SAID WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA DID ON THE _______ DAY OF _________________________, 2023 APPROVE THE SAME

AND DOES FURTHER HEREBY RECOMMEND TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL

OF SAID PLAT.

DATED THIS _______ DAY OF _________________________, 2023.

____________________________________

CHRISTINE ZELLMER ZANT

CHAIRMAN

WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION OF

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

IOWA REGIONAL COORDINATE SYSTEM - ZONE 4

I, JULIE CONOLLY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON THE

_______ DAY OF ________________________, 2023, A

COPY OF THIS PLAT WAS FILED IN THE WOODBURY

COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE.

DATED _____________________________________

______________________________________________

JULIE CONOLLY

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR

THE BRIAN AND BONNIE IVENER TRUST UTD JULY 6, 2006, IS AN OWNER OF THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED IN THE

ATTACHED SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND HAS IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED SAID DESCRIBED REAL

ESTATE DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE, AND HAS IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED

SAID DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE TO BE SURVEYED, STAKED AND PLATTED INTO LOTS AND STREETS, AS IS

PARTICULARLY SHOWN AS SET FORTH IN THE ATTACHED PLAT AND SAID CERTIFICATE OF JUSTIN S. JENSEN, PLS, A

LICENSED SURVEYOR WHO SURVEYED AND PLATTED THE REAL ESTATE TO BE KNOWN AS BARKER ADDITION, AND

THAT THE SAME IS PREPARED WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES AS OWNER AND

PROPRIETOR THEREOF.

EXECUTED AT ________________________, IOWA THE _______ DAY OF _________________________, 2023.

BY: _________________________________________________________________

BRIAN IVENER, TRUSTEES

BY: _________________________________________________________________

BONNIE IVENER, TRUSTEES

STATE OF _________________

 SS.

COUNTY OF_______________

ON THIS ____ DAY OF __________________, 2023, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND

FOR SAID STATE OF _______________, PERSONALLY APPEARED BRIAN IVENER AND BONNIE IVENER, TO ME

PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN DID SAY THAT THE PERSON IS THE TRUSTEES OF THE

BRIAN AND BONNIE IVENER TRUST UTD JULY 6, 2006, THE TRUSTEES EXECUTING THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AS

THAT THEY AS THAT TRUSTEES ACKNOWLEDGED EXECUTION OF THE INSTRUMENT TO BE THE VOLUNTARY ACT

AND DEED OF THE TRUST BY IT AND BY THE TRUSTEES VOLUNTARILY EXECUTED.

_______________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE

MAXYS FAMILY FARM, LLC, AN IOWA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IS AN OWNER OF THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED

IN THE ATTACHED SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND HAS IN THE PURSUANCE OF LAW, CAUSED SAID DESCRIBED

REAL ESTATE TO BE SURVEYED, STAKED AND PLATTED INTO LOTS AND STREETS, AS IS PARTICULARLY SHOWN

AND SET FORTH IN THE ATTACHED PLAT AND SAID CERTIFICATE OF JUSTIN S. JENSEN, PLS, A LICENSED

SURVEYOR WHO SURVEYED AND PLATTED THE REAL ESTATE TO BE KNOWN AS BARKER ADDITION, AND THAT

THE SAME IS PREPARED WITH THE FREE CONSENT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIRES AS OWNER AND

PROPRIETOR THEREOF.

EXECUTED AT ________________________, IOWA THE _______ DAY OF _________________________, 2023.

BY: _________________________________________________________________

DOLF IVENER, MEMBER

STATE OF IOWA  

SS.

COUNTY OF WOODBURY

ON THIS ____ DAY OF _________________, 2023, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND

FOR SAID STATE, PERSONALLY APPEARED DOLF A. IVENER, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY

(SWORN OR AFFIRMED) DID SAY THAT THAT PERSON IS A MEMBER OF SAID MAXYS FAMILY FARM, LLC, AN IOWA

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE SAID MAXYS FAMILY FARM,

LLC, AN IOWA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, BY AUTHORITY OF ITS MEMBERS AND THE SAID DOLF A. IVENER,

MEMBER, ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION OF SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THE VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED OF

SAID MAXYS FAMILY FARM, LLC, AN IOWA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY BY IT VOLUNTARILY EXECUTED.

_______________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE

THE CITY COUNCIL OF SERGEANT BLUFF, IOWA, PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY GRANTED IN IOWA CODE SECTION 354.9, WAIVED THE CITY'S REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF

THE FINAL PLAT OF THE BARKER ADDITION MINOR SUBDIVISION, AS WOULD OTHERWISE BE REQUIRED BY THE CITY'S CODE OF ORDINANCES, WITH THE ADOPTION

OF RESOLUTION NO. 23-01 ON THE 10TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2023.

I, JUSTIN S. JENSEN, A DULY LICENSED

LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE

PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF THE

STATE OF IOWA, HOLDING

CERTIFICATE NO. 22874, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY THAT THE SUBDIVISION PLAT

OF HUSEN ADDITION, WOODBURY

COUNTY, IOWA, IS A TRUE

REPRESENTATION OF A SURVEY

MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY

DIRECTION SUPERVISION, AND THAT

THE SAME IS LOCATED UPON AND

COMPRISES THE WHOLE OF THE

ATTACHED DESCRIBED PROPERTY.

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE

ARE CONTAINED IN SAID DESCRIPTION

THE LOTS AND STREETS DESRIBED IN

THE ADDITION PLATTED; THAT THE

SAME ARE THE DIMENSIONS,

NUMBERS, NAMES AND LOCATIONS

AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT AND THAT

WERE DRIVE AT EACH CORNER OF

EVERY LOT AND TRACT EXCEPT AS

NOTED ON SAID PLAT.

DATED AT

__________________________________,

__________________________________

JUSTIN S. JENSEN

IOWA NO. 22874

LICENSE RENEWAL DATE: DECEMBER

31, 2024.

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING BARKER ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA.

WHEREAS, THE OWNER AND PROPRIETORS DID ON THE ______DAY OF ______________2023 FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION A CERTAIN

PLAT DESIGNATED AS BARKER ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; AND

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF THE STATE OF IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY

COUNTY, IOWA, WITH REFERENCE TO THE FILING OF SAME; AND

WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT.

NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, THAT THE

PLAT OF BARKER ADDITION, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BE, AND THE SAME IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, AND THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY OF THE

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH TO THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS

A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________________, 2023

________________________________

MATTHEW UNG

CHAIRMAN

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

ATTEST:

______________________________

PATRICK F. GILL

SECRETARY

19



S88°34'05"E 469.00'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
3
.
0
0
'

N88°34'05"W 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
3
.
0
0
'

S
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
W

 
1
2
3
3
.
0
0
'

N
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
E

 
1
2
3
3
.
0
0
'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

LOT 1

2.15 AC

LOT 2

2.15 AC

LOT 3

2.15 AC

LOT 4

2.15 AC

LOT 5

2.15 AC

LOT 6

2.51 AC

GROSS AREA: 13.26 ACRES

ROW: -1.26 ACRES

NET: 12.00 ACRES

N88°34'05"W 2661.45'

S
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
W

 
2
6
7
1
.
8
4
'

(IN FEET)

200100500

1 inch = 100 ft.

DRAWING NO.

CREW CHIEF

ENGINEER

SHEET NO.

SURVEYOR

DRAWN BY

REVISIONS

making lives better.

/02D
RA

W
IN

G
 P

A
TH

: 
P:

\2
0
2
2
0
0
1
4
4
3
-0

0
0
\0

6
-D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Ba
rk

er
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
.d

w
g

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

: 
0
2
/1

4
/2

0
2
3
 9

:1
5
 A

M
PL

O
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 S

TE
V

E 
K

A
IS

ER

BARKER ADDITION
FINAL PLAT

WOODBURY COUNTY

2022001443

09/28/2022

.

.

.

.

.

---- J.JENSEN

J.JENSEN M. KNIGHT

FP-01 03

NORTH

617 Pierce Street, Ste 201

Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712-224-4613

fax 515-576-4235

SW CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

CONCRETE MONUMENT

W/BRASS CAP

SURVEY BOUNDARY

PROPOSED LOT

EXIST PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

R.O.W. LINE

PROPOSED EASEMENT

EXIST EASEMENT

FND

PC

BK, PG

(M), (R)

R.O.W.

P.U.E.

P.O.B.

P.O.C.

FOUND

PLASTIC CAP

BOOK AND PAGE

MEASURED, RECORDED

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

MONUMENTS FOUND:

SECTION CORNER

(TYPE AS NOTED)

SECTION CORNER

1/2" REBAR W/GPC #22874

1/2" REBAR W/GPC #22874

MONUMENTS SET:

MAG NAIL

PROJECT

AREA

230TH STREET

BA
RK

ER
 A

VE

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.,

CITY OF SERGEANT BLUFF, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THE SOUTH 1233.00 FEET OF THE WEST 469.00 FEET OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87

NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST.  DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 13.26 ACRES INCLUDING

1.26 ACRE OF ROAD RIGHT OF WAY.

WEST 1/4 CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

5/8 REBAR

SOUTH 1/4 CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

CONCRETE MONUMENT

W/BRASS CAP

AREA BELOW BASE

FLOOD ELEVATION

20



S88°34'05"E 469.00'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

S88°34'05"E 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
3
.
0
0
'

N88°34'05"W 469.00'

2
0
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
3
.
0
0
'

S
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
W

 
1
2
3
3
.
0
0
'

N
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
E

 
1
2
3
3
.
0
0
'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

33.00'

LOT 1

2.15 AC

LOT 2

2.15 AC

LOT 3

2.15 AC

LOT 4

2.15 AC

LOT 5

2.15 AC

LOT 6

2.51 AC

GROSS AREA: 13.26 ACRES

ROW: -1.26 ACRES

NET: 12.00 ACRES

N88°34'05"W 2661.45'

S
0
0
°
3
2
'
2
5
"
W

 
2
6
7
1
.
8
4
'

AREA BELOW BASE

FLOOD ELEVATION

(IN FEET)

200100500

1 inch = 100 ft.

DRAWING NO.

CREW CHIEF

ENGINEER

SHEET NO.

SURVEYOR

DRAWN BY

REVISIONS

making lives better.

/03D
RA

W
IN

G
 P

A
TH

: 
P:

\2
0
2
2
0
0
1
4
4
3
-0

0
0
\0

6
-D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Ba
rk

er
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
.d

w
g

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

: 
0
2
/1

4
/2

0
2
3
 9

:1
5
 A

M
PL

O
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 S

TE
V

E 
K

A
IS

ER

BARKER ADDITION
FINAL PLAT

FLOOD INFORAMATION

WOODBURY COUNTY

2022001443

09/28/2022

.

.

.

.

.

---- J.JENSEN

J.JENSEN M. KNIGHT

FP-01 03

NORTH

617 Pierce Street, Ste 201

Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712-224-4613

fax 515-576-4235

SW CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

CONCRETE MONUMENT

W/BRASS CAP

SURVEY BOUNDARY

PROPOSED LOT

EXIST PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

R.O.W. LINE

PROPOSED EASEMENT

EXIST EASEMENT

FND

PC

BK, PG

(M), (R)

R.O.W.

P.U.E.

P.O.B.

P.O.C.

FOUND

PLASTIC CAP

BOOK AND PAGE

MEASURED, RECORDED

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

MONUMENTS FOUND:

SECTION CORNER

(TYPE AS NOTED)

SECTION CORNER

1/2" REBAR W/GPC #22874

1/2" REBAR W/GPC #22874

MONUMENTS SET:

MAG NAIL

PROJECT

AREA

230TH STREET

BA
RK

ER
 A

VE

WEST 1/4 CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

5/8 REBAR

SOUTH 1/4 CORNER

SECTION 4-87-47

CONCRETE MONUMENT

W/BRASS CAP

ON DECEMBER 9TH, 2022, THE 100-YEAR FLOOD ELEVATION OF 1088.60' FOR THE

PROPERTY WAS DETERMINED BY:

MEESHA LEGG

IOWA DNR, FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT AND DAM SAFETY SECTION

WALLACE STATE OFFICE BUILDING

502 EAST 9TH STREET

DES MOINES, IA 50319

21



CED STAFF - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, CED staff:

shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in accordance 
with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code.
Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning Ordinance, 
Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law.
shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and
Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other materials 
to all relevant stakeholders as required.
shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and
Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that the final plat conforms to the engineering 
and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data.
shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form of 
the plat and related documents; and
Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat.
shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make recommendations 
for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, 
and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties.
Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat.

ZONING COMMISSION - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission:

shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior to 
the date of the hearing; and
Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have also 
ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met. 
shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and
Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general plan, and 
other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the Commission well 
in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss the final plat and other 
relevant information.
may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and
It is the recommendation of staff to approve this proposal with the condition that the property owner(s) sign pavement agreement(s) for any 
future grading and hard surfacing and pavement along Barker Avenue and 230th Street.  Staff does not recommend any additional conditions 
for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the Commission.
shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the form of 
a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be forwarded to the 
property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision.
During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter with the 
consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate with the 
subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law. 

EXTRATERRITORIAL REVIEW
This minor subdivision process requires extraterritorial review under Iowa Code, Section 354.9.  The City of Sergeant Bluff waived their right to 
extraterritorial review with the passage of Resolution No. 23-01 that was passed and approved on the 10th day of January, 2023.

22



23



24



25



LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
The Public Hearing Legal Notification was published in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on Saturday, February 11, 2023.

26



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 1000 FEET
The nine (9) property owners within 1,000 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; 
were notified by a February 10, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County 
Zoning Commission on February 27, 2023. 

As of February 22, 2023, the Community and Development office has received the following 
comments.  The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the 
meeting. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP COMMENTS
Maxys Family Farm LLC & Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust 3701 Cheyenne Blvd Sioux City IA 51104 No comments.
Todd M. Hostetler and Christina M. Hostetler 1419 230th St. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Phillip Freiberg and Stephanie Freiberg 2266 Buchanan Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Glenn J. Kasik and Teresa R. Kasik 2251 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Loren L. Schroeder and Pamel K. Schroeder 2277 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Carolyn Blighton 22 Sunnyview Drive Suffield CT 6078 No comments.
Union Pacific Railroad 1400 Douglas STOP 1640 Omaha NE 68179-1640 No comments.
Brian Krogh and Aimee Krogh 2381 Port Neal Road Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Mark S. Godfredson 2359 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 511054 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
CITY OF SERGEANT BLUFF: Extraterritorial Review Waived.
FARMERS DRAINAGE DISTRICT: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have review the following proposed rezoning for MEC electric.  We have no 

conflicts, but the developer should be aware that the proposed subdivision is not in 
MEC service territory. Let me know if you have any questions and have a great 
weekend! – Casey Meinen, 2/2/23.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC “gas” either. – Tyler Ahlquist, 2/2/23.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this 

location. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 2/8/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: NuStar does not have any issues with the request. – Matt McGee, 2/14/23.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: First off, I wanted to inform you that Paige is no longer with SDHD. At this time, all 

calls/emails/questions can be directed to myself. Second, after review of this 
rezoning, our Department would like acknowledge that due to the parcel located in a 
Flood Plain and previous on-site septic installations they will need to be aware that it 
is likely that either an oversized soil based system or an alternative system will be 
required for each property. This may affect the lot sizes with the installation of a 
private well.  Thanks and please call with any questions. – Ivy Bremer, 2/6/23.

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE REVIEW MEMO BELOW.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: I see no issues. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 2/3/23.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments on this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 2/3/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The taxes are not current.  There is $592.00 owed for the March 2023 payment. – 
Kimberlee Koepke, 2/2/23.

27



REVIEW MEMO – MARK J. NAHRA, PE – WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER, SECONDARY ROADS DEPARTMENT

28



REVISION TO ADDRESS COUNTY ENGINEER’S MEMO 

29



PARCEL REPORT

30



ZONING MAP

31



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – EFFECTIVE MAP

32



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – DRAFT MAP

https://ifis.iowafloodcenter.org/ifis/newmaps/hazard/ 

33



SOIL REPORT

34



SOIL MAP

35



ELEVATION

WELL & SEPTIC LOCATIONS
Empty lots.  No wells or septic systems.   

36



AGREEMENT TO IMPOSE COVENANT 
BASED UPON LINEAL LOT FRONTAGE 

The undersigned, Brian Ivener, Trustee of the Brian & Bonnie Ivener Trust UTD July 6, 2006 and 
the Maxys Family Farm LLC, the owner(s) of the real estate known as Barker Addition, an 
Addition to Woodbury County, Iowa, and legally described as follows: 

Lots One (1), Two (2), Three (3), Four (4), Five (5), and Six (6) of Barker Addition of 
Part of Section Four (4), Township Eighty-Seven (87) North, Range Forty-Seven (47) 
West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, in the County of Woodbury and the State of Iowa, 
a/k/a see legal described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
hereof. 

In consideration of the approval of the Final Plat of Barker Addition we agree as follows: 

1. To impose a recorded covenant on Barker Avenue and/or 230th Street agreeing to an 

assessment on said Lots in event Barker Avenue and/or 230th Street is graded for hard 

surfacing and paved (the Improvement).   

2. At the time of the Improvement, the then owners, their successors, and assigns shall be 

assessed collectively a maximum of eighty percent (80%) of the total actual cost of the 

Improvement to the centerline of Barker Avenue and/or 230th Street.  The centerline to be 

fifty percent (50%) of the total Improvement of said roadways, therefore, the effective 

collective assessment against the Lots in Barker Addition subdivision will be a maximum 

of forty percent (40%) of the total actual cost of the improvements abutting said lots.      

3. The collective assessment shall be individually prorated to each of the Lots on the basis of 

the number of lineal feet on which each Lot abuts said roadway(s) and the respective Lot 

owners shall have the responsibility for the assessment only on the lot(s) within the 

Subdivision he/she or it may own.  

4. In the event that statutes or ordinances existing at the time of the Improvements results in 

an overall lower assessment against the Lots in Barker Addition, then the lower amount 

shall be assessed against said lots. 

5. This Agreement to Impose Covenant shall be binding upon the respective successors, heirs, 

administrators, executors and assigns of the parties. 

PENDING REVIEW BY COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE – SUBJECT TO CHANGES

37



Dated this ____________day of ________________________, 2023. 

Maxys Family Farm, LLC,  

______________________                 

Dolf Ivener, Member                        

Dated this ____________day of ________________________, 2023. 

Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust UTD July 6, 2006 

______________________                 

Brian Ivener, Trustee 

On this ___ day of _______________ A.D. 2023, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared to me known Dolf Ivener, Member Maxys Family Farm LLC to be the 
person(s) named herein and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledge that Dolf 
Ivener as Member of Maxys Family Farm LLC executed the same as a voluntary act and deed. 

____________________________________________________                                                      
Notary Public in and for said County

Seal or stamp above 

On this ___ day of _______________ A.D. 2023, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared to me known Brian Ivener, Trustee of the Brian & Bonnie Ivener Trust UTD 
July 6, 2006 to be the person(s) named herein and who executed the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledge that Brian Ivener, Trustee of the Brian & Bonnie Ivener Trust UTD July 6, 2006 
executed the same as a voluntary act and deed. 

____________________________________________________                                                      
Notary Public in and for said County

Seal or stamp above

38



EXHIBIT A 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF 
THE 5TH P.M., CITY OF SERGEANT BLUFF, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE SOUTH 1233.00 FEET OF THE WEST 469.00 FEET OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87 
NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST.  DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 13.26 ACRES 
INCLUDING 1.26 ACRE OF ROAD RIGHT OF WAY. 

39



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – FEBRUARY 22, 2023 
MAXYS FAMILY FARM LLC / BRIAN AND BONNIE IVENER TRUST 

ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AP TO AE ZONING DISTRICT 
APPLICATION DETAILS:

Owner(s): Maxys Family Farm LLC; Brian & Bonnie 
Ivener Trust 
Application Type: Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone)
Current Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Proposed Zoning District: Agricultural Estates (AE) 
Total Acres: 13.26 Acres 
Current Use: Agriculture  Proposed Use: Residential 
Corn Suitability Rating(s): 66.26 CSR2 
Pre-application Meeting: None 
Application Date: 1/31/23 
Legal Notice Date: 2/11/23 
Stakeholder (1000’) Letter Date: 2/10/23 
Zoning Commission Public Hearing Date: 2/27/23 
Board of Supervisors Public Hearing Date(s): 3/7/23, 
3/14/23, 3/21/23 (It is possible the third hearing could be 
waived at the at the second hearing)

PROPERTY DETAILS:
Parcel(s): 874704300003
Township/Range: T87N R47W (Liberty Township) 
Section: 4 
Quarter: SW ¼ SW ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone A – General Floodplain 
Address: None 

TABLE OF CONTENTS:
Summary, Aerial, Plat Excerpt & Recommendation 
Application 
Evaluation Criteria 
Legal Notification 
Adjacent Owners’ Notification 
Stakeholder Comments 
Proposed Ordinance Language 
Supporting Documentation 

SUMMARY
Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys Family Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust has filed an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment (rezone) on the property 
(Parcel #874704300003) as referenced above from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District for the purpose of establishing six residential lots 
through a concurrent minor subdivision application.  This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on February 11, 2023.  The neighbors within 
1000 FT have been duly notified via a February 10, 2023 letter about the February 27, 2023 Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment.  As of 
February 22, 2023, no comments or inquiries have been received about the proposal.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been 
notified and have been requested to comment.  No objections were received from the stakeholders.  A small portion of the property that is not in any buildable area is located in the 
Special Flood Hazard Hara (Zone A – Floodplain).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the 
appropriate criteria for approval. It is the recommendation of staff to approve this proposal.

AERIAL MAP MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of staff to approve this Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) application as proposed.

Suggested Motion: Motion to recommend approval to the Board of Supervisors, the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on the portion of Parcel #874704300003 as proposed.    

40



APPLICATION

41



MAXYS FAMILY FARM MEMBER RESOLUTION

42



EVALUATION CRITERIA
The Zoning Commission shall base their recommendations and the Board of Supervisors shall base their decision on any requested 
amendment of the zoning district map on the following criteria: 

Conformance with the goals and objectives set forth in the approved general development plan for Woodbury County including the 
future land use map.

The 2005 Future Land Use Map shows this area as Rural Residential.  The parcel is 
currently zoned Agricultural Preservation (AP) and the request is to change to Agricultural 
Estates (AE).  The request conforms to the goals and objectives of the general development 
plan as it relates to the following land use goals: 

 Residential Goal 5.1: Encourage non-farm residential development to locate near 
cities or on existing hard surfaced roadways, particularly in areas that can be 
served by urban services such as public water and sewer systems. 

 Residential Goal 5.2: Encourage residential development to locate in areas with 
suitable accessibility, soils, and terrain. 

 Land Use Goal 1.2: Adopt development regulations that promote efficient, stable 
land uses with minimum conflicts and provision of public infrastructure. 

 Land Use Goal 1.3: Encourage development near cities by discouraging leap-frog development outside municipalities. 

Compatibility and conformance with the policies and plans of other agencies with respect to the subject property.            

There are no conflicts with the policies and plans of other agencies.  

Consideration of the Corn Suitability (CSR) of the property.                 

The CSR2 rating for this property includes ratings of 66.26.  The agricultural goal of the Woodbury County General Plan is to protect prime 
farmland as determined by a high corn suitability rating (e.g. over 65 CSR) from conversion to other land uses. 

Compatibility with adjacent land uses.                 

The rezone to AE is compatible with the area residential uses.  As the image below illustrates, Barker Avenue includes AE districts to the north 
of the property.   

Compatibility with other physical and economic factors affecting or affected by the proposed rezoning.

This proposal is compatible with other physical and economic factors in the project area as there are no major infrastructure 
improvements required.   

Any other relevant factors.

The purpose of the rezone to AE allows for more than two houses to be located within the same quarter-quarter section. 

43



LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
The Public Hearing Legal Notification was published in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on Saturday, February 11, 2023.

44



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 1000 FEET
The nine (9) property owners within 1,000 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; 
were notified by a February 20, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County 
Zoning Commission on February 27, 2023. 

As of February 22, 2023, the Community and Development office has received the following 
comments.  The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the 
meeting. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP COMMENTS
Maxys Family Farm LLC & Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust 3701 Cheyenne Blvd Sioux City IA 51104 No comments.
Todd M. Hostetler and Christina M. Hostetler 1419 230th St. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Phillip Freiberg and Stephanie Freiberg 2266 Buchanan Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Glenn J. Kasik and Teresa R. Kasik 2251 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Loren L. Schroeder and Pamel K. Schroeder 2277 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Carolyn Blighton 22 Sunnyview Drive Suffield CT 6078 No comments.
Union Pacific Railroad 1400 Douglas STOP 1640 Omaha NE 68179-1640 No comments.
Brian Krogh and Aimee Krogh 2381 Port Neal Road Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments.
Mark S. Godfredson 2359 Barker Ave. Sergeant Bluff IA 511054 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
CITY OF SERGEANT BLUFF: Extraterritorial Review of Subdivision Waived.
FARMERS DRAINAGE DISTRICT: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have review the following proposed rezoning for MEC electric.  We have no 

conflicts, but the developer should be aware that the proposed subdivision is not in 
MEC service territory. Let me know if you have any questions and have a great 
weekend! – Casey Meinen, 2/2/23.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC “gas” either. – Tyler Ahlquist, 2/2/23.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this 

location. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 2/8/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: NuStar does not have any issues with the request. – Matt McGee, 2/14/23.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: First off, I wanted to inform you that Paige is no longer with SDHD. At this time, all 

calls/emails/questions can be directed to myself. Second, after review of this 
rezoning, our Department would like acknowledge that due to the parcel located in a 
Flood Plain and previous on-site septic installations they will need to be aware that it 
is likely that either an oversized soil based system or an alternative system will be 
required for each property. This may affect the lot sizes with the installation of a 
private well.  Thanks and please call with any questions. – Ivy Bremer, 2/6/23.

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments on the rezone.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: I see no issues. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 2/3/23.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments on this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 2/3/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The taxes are not current.  There is $592.00 owed for the March 2023 payment. – 
Kimberlee Koepke, 2/2/23.

45



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

A ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION MAPPING AMENDMENT 
TO THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA ZONING ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, adopted a Zoning 
Ordinance on July 22, 2008, by Resolution No. 10,455 being recorded in the Office of the 
Woodbury County Recorder, and 

WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has received a report in respect 
to amending the said Ordinance from the Woodbury County Zoning Commission which held a 
public hearing on the amendment; all as by law provided. Which the amendment is attached 
hereto marked item One (1), and hereby made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has received said report, 
studied and considered the same, and has held hearings on said amendment, all as by law 
provided; and 

WHEREAS the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has concluded that the said 
ordinance shall amend the aforesaid Zoning Ordinance; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors, duly assembled, that the aforesaid Zoning District is amended as shown on said 
attached item One (1); and the previous zoning district designation shall be repealed upon the 
effective date of this amendment. 

Dated this ____ day of _________, 2023. 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

______________________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

______________________________ 
Jeremy Taylor, Vice Chairman 

______________________________ 
Daniel Bittinger 

______________________________ 
Mark Nelson 

______________________________ 
Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline:  
Public Hearing and 1st Reading:  
Public Hearing and 2nd Reading:  
Public Hearing and 3rd Reading:  
Adopted:  
Effective:  

Attest: 

__________________________
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 

DRAFT ORDINANCE – SUBJECT TO CHANGES

46



ITEM ONE (1) 

Property Owner(s):  Maxys Family Farm, L.L.C., 3400 Talbot Road, Sioux City, IA 51103, and 
the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust, 3701 Cheyenne Blvd., Sioux City, IA 51104. 

Petitioner Applicant(s): Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys Family Farm, L.L.C., 3400 Talbot 
Road, Sioux City, IA 51103, and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust, 3701 Cheyenne Blvd., 
Sioux City, IA 51104. 

Pursuant to Section 2.02:4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, and in accordance with 
Section 335 of the Code of Iowa, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing on Monday, February 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation for amendments 
to the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance and Mapping for the unincorporated area of 
Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 

Amendment to rezone from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District to the 
Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District for 13.26-acres located on Parcel #874704300003 in 
the SW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 4, T87N R47W (Liberty Township) in the County of 
Woodbury and State of Iowa.  The property is described as 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF 
THE 5TH P.M., CITY OF SERGEANT BLUFF, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE SOUTH 1233.00 FEET OF THE WEST 469.00 FEET OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 87 
NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST.  DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 13.26 ACRES 
INCLUDING 1.26 ACRE OF ROAD RIGHT OF WAY.

47



PARCEL REPORT

48



ZONING MAP

49



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – EFFECTIVE MAP

50



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – DRAFT MAP

https://ifis.iowafloodcenter.org/ifis/newmaps/hazard/ 

51



SOIL REPORT

52



SOIL MAP

53



ELEVATION

54



55



56



57


	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03





